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To,

The Members of POWERGRID TELESERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of POWERGRID
TELESERVICES LIMITED ('the Company''), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31.t

March 2V24, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

on that date, and notes to financial statement including a summary of the material

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as

"Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us, the #oresaid Financial Statements give the information required by the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with lndian Accounting Standards prexribed under section 133 of the Act,

('lnd AS') and other accounting principles generally accepted in tndia, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31't March 2024 and its profit, the total comprehensive

income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standard on

Auditing ("SAs") specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under

those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accouatants of
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India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder' and we

havefuUilledourotherethicalresponsibilitiesinaccordancewiththeserequirementsand
thelCAl,sCodeofEthics.Webelievethattheauditevidenceobtainedbyusissufficient
and appropriate to Provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements'

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional iudgment' were of most

,ig,.iIl.u,'."inoulauditoftheFinancialstatementsofthecurrentperiod.Thesematters
wereaddressedinthecontextofourauditoftheFinancialstatementsasawhole,andin
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a seParate oPinion on these mattels'

W" have determined that there are no key audit matters to commr:rricate in our rePort'

Key Audit Matters

Other Matters

Thereon

pursuant to Business Transfel Agreement signed between Power Grid Corporation of

India Ltd. (POWERGRID, Uolding Company) and the Company' Telecom Undertaking

ofPoWERGRIDhasbeentralsferledasagoingconcemandonaslumpsalebasis
effective from 1st October, 2023. Accordingly, Comparative accounting period presented

in the financial statements of the Company related to Telecom undertaking which were

previously audited by the POWERGRID Auditors has been restated for the accounting
'i*pu.t 

oitf," transfer under IND AS, as if the purchase has occurred from the beginning

of the comparative period in the financial statements'

InformationotherthantheStandaloneFinancialstatementsandAuditor,sReport

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other

information. The other information comprises the information included in the

Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Armexures to Board's

Repori, Business Responsibility and Sustainability RePort' Corporate Govemance and

Shareholder's InJormation, but does not include the financial statements and our

Auditor,sReportthereon.Theotherirrformationasidentifiedaboveisexpectedtobe
made available to us after the date of this Auditor's Report'

ouropiniononthefinancialstatementsdoesnotcovertheotherinformationandwewill
not exPress any form of assurance conclusion thereon'
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothrng to report in this regard as the Board Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report.

Responsibility of Management and rhose Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other compreheruive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, rncluding the lndian Accounting Standatds (lnd
AS) specilied under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accotrnting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and applicahon of
appropriate accounting policies; making iudgnents and estimates that are reasonable
and pruden! and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financral
conhols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accurary and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free ftom material misstatemen!
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessrng the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic altemative but to do so.

The Company's Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's
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Auditors' Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue

an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to inJluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional ludgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
intemal conhol.

a

Obtain an understanding of intemal financial controls relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropdate in the circumstances. Under section

143(3)(0 of the Ac! we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate intemal financial controls system in place and the

operating effectiveness of such controls.

Conclude on the approp ateness of management's use of the going concern basis

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast sigrrificant doubt on
the Company's abiJity to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the

related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

a
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a

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.



a Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We coruider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) plarming the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
signfficant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding rndependence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguatds.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless Iaw or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter ot
when, in extremely rare circurnstances, we detetmine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2020 ("the Order"), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
Annexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on out audit we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b. In our opiniorl proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive lncome, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS

prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

As the Govemment Companies have been exempted from applicability of the
provision of section "l{A(2) ot the Companies Act, 2013, reporting on

disqualification of Director is not required.

f. With respect to the adequary of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to Financial Statements of the Company and the

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure
"8". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's intemal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements.

E. Pursuant to Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5s June 20L5 issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, Govemment of lndia, provision of Section 197 of the

Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company, being a Govemment
Company.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as

amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Financial Statemens.

The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March

e

t.
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lv.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(u) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funis or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entity (,,tntermediaries,,), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any marurer whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ulfimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultirnate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in thu uggr"gut";
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recordei
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behaU of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries,,) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement

The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31., 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevaii
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit
wedid not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
Aprtll, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservahon of audit trail as per statutory requirements for record retention
is not applicable for the financial year ended March3L,2024.

3. In terms of Section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013, we give in the "Annexure-C"
statement on the directions issued by the Compholler and Auditor General of lndia.

For lVI/s Gupta Nanda & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN No.09039N D

Sanjive Nan t
Partner(FCA)

Ac

UDIN: 2-tr o€? roB lSff xv A-55 55

cloa.5
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ANNEXURE'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

As referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of the
POWERGRID TELESERVICES LIMITED, on the Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024, we report that:

(l) a) (e) The Company has maintained propet records showing fulI particulars
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

b) The Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year. In our opinion, frequency of verification is reasonable having
regard to size of the comp,rny and the nature of its business. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) The Company does not have any immovable property. Hence Reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) is not applicable.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, the provision
of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

e) In our opinion and according to the rnformation and explanations given to us, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any Benami property under the "Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Ac! 19gg and
Rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the
year. In our opinion, frequency of verification, coverage & procedute adopted by
the company for verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company
and nature of its busrness. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate fot
each class of inventory between physical inventory and books records were
noticed on such verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year from banks or financial
rnstitutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
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(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or

advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms,

Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordrngly, provisions of
paragraph 3(iii) (a) to paragraph 3(iii)(f) are not applcable to the company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, The

Company has not entered into any transaction covered under Sections 185 and 186

of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not

applicable.

(v) [n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

company has not accepted any deposit from the public & no amounts has been

deemed to be deposits in accordance with the provisions of the sections 73 to 75 or

any other relevant provisions of the Act, and the rules framed thereunder.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company specified

by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies

Act, 2013, in respect of Operations of the Company and we are of the opinion that

prima facie the prescribed records have been made and maintained. However, we

have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine

whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues with appropdate

authorities including Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax,

Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other

statutory dues applicable to the Company and that there are no undisputed

statutory dues outstandrng as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six

months from the date they became payable. We note that the company being a

subsidiary of the POWERGRID Group and is not having any employees on its
role, the provisions of the Provident Fund and the provisions of the Employees

State lnsurance Act are not applicable to the Company.

b) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory
dues referred to in sub- clause (a) have not been deposited on account of dispute.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not recorded in the books of account any transaction which have been

surrendered or disclosed as income durin
Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the p
are not applicable.

e tax assessments under the

ph 3(viii) o( the Order
g the
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(ix) In our opinion, based on our examination of the records and according to the
infotmation and explanations given to us,

(u) The Company has not defaulted during the year in repayment of loans &
payment of Interest to its financial institutions, bankers, dues to the Bond
holders and orher Lenders. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(a) not applicable to
the company.

(b) The Company has not been declared winful defaurter by any bank/financiar
institution/ other lender.

(c) Term loans have been applied for the purpose for which the roans were
obtained.

(d)

(e)

(*) (u)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

The Company has not raised any funds on short term basis to be utilized for
long term purpose. Hence, clause 3(ix)(d) is not applicable.

The Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Joint venfures or Associates.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) are not applicable to the Company.

The company has not raised money by way of an initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not made any prefetential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fu[y, partialy or optionaly convertible)
during the year and hence reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

According to the informadon and expranations given to us and as represented.
by the management and based on our examination of the books and records of
the Company, no case of material fraud on the company or by the company has
been noticed ot reported during the year.

As no fraud has been noticed during the year as mentioned at xi(a) above,
report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act in the Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rure 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rures
2014 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower
complaints have been received during the year by the Company.
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(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company as prescribed under section 406 of the Act.

Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) & 3(xil)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the

company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and as replesented by

the management, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with

sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the detafu have been disclosed

in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting

Standards.

(xiv) (a) According to the infotmation and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the comPany, the company has an internal audit

system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Intemal Auditors for the period under audit were considered

by us in determining the nature, timing and extend of our audit procedures

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the tecords of the company, the company has not entered into non-

cash transactions with directors or persons cormected with them covered undel

section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable

to the company.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not

required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934.

Accordingly, paragraphs 3(xvi) are not applicable to the Company'

(xvii)According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the company, the company has not incurred any cash

losses in the current Financial Year and in the immediately preceding Financial Year.

Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvii) of the order are not applicable.

(xviii)There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year'

Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xviii) of the order are not applicable.

(xix) on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of

financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying

the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management

plans and based on our examination of the records of the comPany, in our opinion,

no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report and the company is

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when

they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We. however,

state that this is not an assurance as to the futule viability.
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xx) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company is not required to comply with section 135

of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(a) & 3(xx)(b) are not
applicable to the Company.

xxi) The Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Joint ventures or Associates.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) is not applicable to the company.

For I\,I/s Gupta Nanda & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 09039N

Sanjive N
Partner(FCA)
Membership N
Place: New Delhi
Date: 24.07.2024
uDIN: 2-y o8? lo8 B<H XV A-56{5
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ANNEXURE - "8"

As referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of the
I\ttls POWERGRID TELESERVICES LIMITED ("the Company"), on the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reoorting under Clause (i) of
Sub-sectiqn 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
Financial Statements of the Company as of 31't March 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Intemal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal
financial control with reference to Financial Statements based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the "ICAI"), These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation oI reliable financial information, as

required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over the

financial reporting of company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance

with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Control over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and Standards on
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of intemal financial conkols Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all matetial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the intemal financial controls system over financial teporting with reference to

of internal financialFinancial Statements and their operating effectiveness

'1,4



controls over financial reporting with reference to Financial Statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to Fraud or Error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system
over financial reporting with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to Financial Statements include those policies and procedures

that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the trarsactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that hansactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may ocorr and not be detected. Also,
proiections of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls .over financial reporting
with reference to Financial Statements to future periods ate subiect to the risk that the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Financial Statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriotate.
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Opinion

ln our opinion, to the best of our fuformation and according to the expranation given to
us, the Company has, in all materiar respects, an adequate intemal financiar contrors
system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financiar
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on the intemal controls
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India."

For [Ws Gupta Nanda & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No.09039N

Sanjive N da
Partner(FCA)

Membership No.087108
Place: New Delhi
Datel 24.07.2024

UDIN: 2! aJ? toB EfHxYa 5{ SS

NewDelhl
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Annexure 'C' to the Independent Auditors' Report

As referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the Members of the
POWERGRID TELESERVICES LIMITED ("the Company"), on the Financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report the statement on the directions
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of lndia

we have verified various documents and other relevant records and also on the basis of
information and explanations provided to us, by the management of pOWERGRID

TELESERVICES LIMITED to ascertain whether the company has complied with the
section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and give our report against each specrlic
direction as under.

S

No.

Directions ry's 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013

Auditor's reply on action taken
on the directions

1

2l

Whether the Company has system
in place to process all the
accounting transactions through
IT system? If yes, the implications
of processing of accounting
transactions outside IT system on
the integity of the accounts along
with the financial implicahons, if
any, may be stated.

Whether there is any restructuring
of an existing loan or cases of
waiver/write off of
debts/ loans/interest etc. made by
a lender to the company due to the
company's inability to repay the
loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated. Whether such cases

are properly accounted for? (In
case, lender is a Govemment
company, then this direction is

NIL

NIL

Impact
on
financial
statement

The company is having ERP

system (SAP) in place for
processing all accounting
transactions. No accounting
transaction is being
recorded/processed otherwise
than the ERP system in place.

Based on our verfication and

explanations and inJormation
given to us, there were no cases

of restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/ write
off of debts/loan/interest etc.

made by a lender to the
company due to the company's
inability to repay the loan.
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also applicable for statutory
auditor of lender company).

3 Whether funds (grants/subsidy
etc.) received/ receivable for
specilic schemes from
Central/State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted

br / utiltzed as per its term and
conditions? List the cases of
deviation

Based on our verification and
explanations and information
given to us, no funds were
received / receivable for
specific schemes from Central/
State govemment or its
agencies.

NIL

For M/s Gupta Nanda & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 09039N

Sanjive Nan
Partner(FCA)
Membership No.087108
Place: New Delhi
Datet 24.07.2O24
uprN' iqoer I oB gKH xv 6156 55
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Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate and General Information

POWERGRID Teleservices Limited ("the Company") is a public comPany domiciled and
incorporated in India under the provisions of Companies Act and a wholly owned subsidiary of
Power Grid Corporation of India Limited. The registered office of the Company is situated at B-9,

Qutub Institutional Area, Katwaria Sarai, New Delhi-110 016, India.

The company is engaged in business of developing, operating and maintaining
Telecommunications Networks and other allied activities.

The financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 24.07.2024.

2. Material Accounting Policy Information

A summary of the material accounhng policy information applied in the preparation of the financial
statements are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the financial statements.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified),
The Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable and as amended thereafter.

ii) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention except certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer Note no. 2.11

for accounting poliry regarding financial instruments).

iii) Functional and presentation curency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rupees or {), which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency, and all amounts are rounded to the nearest Crore and two
decimals thereof, except as stated otherwise.

iv)Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although, such
estimates and assumptions are made on a reasonable and prudent basis taking into account all
available in{ormatiory actual results could differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised iI the revision effects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years (refer Note
no. 3 on critical accounting estimates, assumptions and ludgments).
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v) Current and norcurrent classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/nonrurrent
classification.

An ass€t is current when it is:

. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non{urent.

A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

. There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.

The Company recognizes twelve months period as its operating cycle.

22 Property, Plant and Equipment

Initial Recogrrition and Measurement

Property. Plant and Equipment is initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the mann.ii.,tend"d by management. After initial recognition, iroperty,
Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

In the case of commissioned assets, deposit works/cost- plus contracts where final settlement of
bills with contractors is yet to be effected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subiect to
necessary adiustments in the year of final settlement.

The cost of land includes provisional deposits, payments/liabilities towards compersatiory
rehabilitation and other expenses wherever possession of land is taken.

Expenditure on levelling clearing and grading of land if incurred for construction of building is
capitalized as part of cost of the related building.

Spares parts whose cost is {5,00,000/- and above, standby equipment and servicing equipment
which meets the recognition criteria of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised.

The acquisition or construction of some items of ptoperty, plant and equipment although not
directly increasing the future economic benefits of any particular existing item of property, plant
and equipment, may be necessary for the company to obtain future economic benefits from its other
assets. Such items are recognized as property. plant and equipment.

]16r



Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in carrying amount of assets when it is
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the company
and cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. If the cost of the replaced part or earlier inspection component is not available, the
estimated cost of similar new parts/ inspection component is used as an indication of what the cost
of the existing part/ inspection component was when the item was acquired or inspection was
carried out.

The costs of the day-to-day sericing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss as incurred.

Derecognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from derecogtrition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of derecognition.

2.3 CapitalWork-In-Progress(CWIP)

Cost of material, erection charges and other expenses incurred for the construction of Property,
Plant and EquiPment are shown as CWIP based on progress of erection work till the date of
capitalization.

Expenditure of CorPorate office, Regional Offices and Proiects, directly attributable to conskuction
of property, Plant and equipment are identified and allocated on a systematic basis to the cost of
the related assets.

Interest during construction and expenditure (net) allocated to construction as per policy above are
kePt as a seParate item under CWIP and apportioned to the assets being capitalized in proportion
to the closing balance of CWIP.

Unsettled liability for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts is accounted for
on estimated basis as per terms of the contracts.

2.4 Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under development

Intangible assets with finite useful life that are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on already capitalized Intangible assets is capitalised when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in an existing asset and is amortised prospectively.

The cost of software (which is not an integtal part of the related hardware) acquired for intemal use
and resulting in significant future economic benefits is recognized as an intangible asset when the
same is ready for its use.

Expenditure incurred, eligible for capitalization under the head Intangible Assets, are carried as
"Intangible Assets under Development" till such assets are ready for their intended use.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.



Expenditure on development activities shall be recognised as Intangible asset if it meets the
eligibitity criteria as per Ind AS 38 'Intangible Assets', otherwise it shall be recognised as an expense.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.5 Depreciation/Amortisation

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation/amortisation on the items of telecom business is provided on straight line method as
per useful life specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except for property, plant and
equipment specified in the following paragraphs.

Depreciation on following items of property, plant and equipment is provided based on estimated
useful life as per technical assessment.

Particulars lUseful life
a Computers & Peripherals [v"*-
b. Servers & Network Components F y"a."

Residual value of above assets is considered as Nil.

Mobile phones are charged off in the year of purchase.

Property, plant and equipment costing {5.000/- or less, are fully depreciated in the year of
acquisition.

Where the cost of depreciable property, plant and equipment has undergone a change due to
increase/decrease in long term monetary items on account of exchange rate flucfuation, price
adiustment, change in duties or similar factors, the unamortized balance of such asset is depreciated
prospectively.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from Property, Plant and Equipment during the year is
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation for items of property, plant and
equiPment are reviewed at each financial year-end and adiusted prospectivelp wherever required.

Right of Use Assets:

Right of Use assets are fully depreciated from the lease commencement date on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

Intangible Assets

Cost of software capitalized as intangible asset is amortized over the period of legal right to use or
3 years, whichever is less with Nil residual value.

Telecom Licenses are amortised on straight line basis over their respective useful lives.

Amortisation on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the year is charged on prq.
rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed.

The amortization period and the amortiz-ation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year-end and are accounted for as change in accounting estimates in accordance with Ind
AS 8 "Accounting Policieq Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.



2.5 Borrowing Costs

All the borrowed funds (except short term funds for working capital) are earmarked to specific
proiects. The borrowing costs are allocated to the proiects in proportion to the funds so earmarked.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are

capitalised (net of income on temporary deployment of funds) as part of the cost of such assets till
the assets are ready for the intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36

'lmpairment of Assets'. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs

to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are

discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the purpose of impairment testin& assets that cannot
be tested individually are grouped together into the smauest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit", or "CGU").

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the
assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the assefs carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortizatioq if no impairment loss had
been recognized.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, and deposits held at call with banks
having a maturity of tfuee months or less from the date of acquisition that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and are subiect to an insignificant risk of changes h value.

2.9 Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of the cost, determined on weighted average basis and net realizable
value.

Spares which do not meet the recognition criteria as Property, Plant and Equipment, including
spare parts whose cost is less than {5,00 ,000 - are recorded as inventories



Surplus materials as determined by the management are held for intended use and are included in
the inventory.

The diminution in the value of obsolete/ unserviceable/ surplus stores and spares and non-moving
unserviceable inventories is ascertained on review and provided for.

2.10 Leases

Lease is a contract that conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether: (i) the contract involves use of an identified assets, (ii) the customer has

substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(iii) the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset.

i) As a Lessee

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-us€ asset (ROU) and
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangemens in which it is a lessee, except for lease with
a term of twelve months or less (i.e. short term leases) and leases for which the underlying asset is
of low value. For these short-term and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the
Company recognizes the lease payments on straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain
that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability adiusted for any lease payments made at or before the inception
date of the lease along with any initial direct costs, restoration obligations and lease incentives
received.

Subsequentlp the right-of-use ass€ts is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciatiory
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The Company applies Ind AS 36 to determine whether a ROU asset is impaired and accounts for
any identified impairment loss as described in the accounting policy 2.8 on "Impairment of non-
financial assets".

The lease liability is initially measured at present value of the lease payments that are not paid at

that date.

The interest cost on lease liability is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless eligible for
capitalization as per accounting policy 2.7 on "Borrowins costs".

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the financial statements and lease

payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

ii) As a Lessor

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

a) Finance leases

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset is

classified as a finance lease.

Net investment in such leased assets are recorded at the lower of the fair value of the leased ProPerty
and the present value of the minimum lease payments as Lease Receivables under current and non-

current other financial assets.



The interest element of lease is accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period
based on a pattem reflecting a constant Periodic rate of retum on the net investment.

b) Operating leases

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, the asset is capitalized as property, plant and equipment and depreciated over
its economic life. Rental income from oPerating lease is recognized over the term of the
arrangement.

2.11 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the follo\ ring cateSories:

. at amortised cost,

. at fair value through other comprehensive income

. at fair value through profit or loss

The classilication depends on the following:

o the entig's business model for managing the financial assets and

. the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Initial recognition and measurement

AII financial assets are recognisd initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs, if anp that are attributable to the

acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a sigrificant
financing component are measured at transaction price.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Instruments at Amortised cost Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows

where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at

amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost

is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these

financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Debt Instruments at Fair value through other comprehensive income (Fvocl): Assets that are

held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets'

cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income (FVOCI). On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss

previouslyrecognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest income from

ihese financlal aisets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Debt instruments at Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria

for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income and



net gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVPL are recognised in
statement of profit and loss and Presented within other income in the Period in which it arises

Equity investments

AU equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments' are measured at fair value.
The company may, on initial recognitiory make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI) on an instrument by-instrument
basis.

For equity instruments classified as at FVOCI, all fair value ch.rnges on the instrument, excluding
dividends are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Profit or
Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the ComPany may transfer the cumulative gain or loss

within equity.

Derecognition of financial asse'ts

A financial asset is derecognized only when

i) The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) a) The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset (or)
retains the contractual ri8hts to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients and

b) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset (or) the
company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received/receivable
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

For trade receivables and contract assets, the comPany applies the simplified approach required by
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the comPany

determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition.
If credit risk has not increased signficantly, 12-month Expected credit Loss (ECL) is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognitioq then the entity reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12 -month ECL.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial

asset to another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity

under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company.

The Company's financial liabilities include loans, trade and other payables.

Classification, initial recogrrition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

issue of financial liabilities



Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financiat liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised

in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the EIR. Gains and losses

are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the Iiability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing liability is replaced by another from the same lender on

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing tiability are substantially modifie4 such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been

extinguished or transferred to another Party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash

assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as other
income or finance cost.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet

if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intenhon to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.12 Foreign Currency Translation

(a) Functional and presentation currenry

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the Company oPerates ('the functional currency'). The

financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rupees or t), which is the Company's

functional and presentation currency.

(b)Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rates Prevailing on the date

of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated with reference to the rates of

exchange ruling on the date of the Balance Sheet. Non-Monetary items denominated in loreign

currenry are reported at the exchange rate ruling on the date of initial recognition of the non-

monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability, or the date that related item is recognized

in the financial statements, whichever is earlier. Incase the transaction is recognized in stages, then

transaction date is established for each stage.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis

within other gains/ (losses).

2.13 Income Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the

Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity



or other comprehensive income. In this case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other

comprehensive income.

Current income tax

The Current Tax is based on taxable profit for the year under the tax laws enacted and applicable to

the reporting period in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income

and any adjustment to tax Payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences betrveen the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities in the company's financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the

computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the Balance Sheet method. Deferred tax

u"*i. ur" generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and

unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against

which those deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be

utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax

liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

2.14 Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price to which the ComPany exPects to be entitled in
a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third Parties. The Company
recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

Significant Financing Component

Where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and

payment by the customer exceeds one year, the Company assesses the effects of significant financing

component in the contract. As a consequence, the Company makes adiustment in the transaction

prices for the effects of time value of money.

2.14,1 Revenue f rom Operations

lncome from Telecom Services, net of downtime credit, is recognised on the basis of terms of

agreements/purchase orders from the customers. Upfront fee received in advance under long term

contracts providing Indefeasible Right to Use (lRU), is recognised as revenue on the basis of

estimation of revenue over the period of contract.

2.14.2Other Income

Interest income is recognized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability

exists, on a time propo-rtion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable

interest rate, using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Liquidated damages, yr'arranty claims and interest on advances to suppliers are recognized when

no significant uncertainty as to measurability and collectability exists



Income from Scrap is accounted for as and when sold.

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive payment is established.

Insurance claims forloss of profit are accounted for in the year of acceptance. Other insurance claims
are accounted for based on certainty of realization.

Revenue from rentals and operating leases is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreement.

2.15 Dividends

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on

approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

2.16 Provisions and Contingencies

a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past even! it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted. Unwinding
of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are

reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adiusted to reflect the current best estimate.

b) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of ludgment of the management / indePendent
experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current
management estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the

existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be

confirmed only. by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fufure events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
stat€ments when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of iudgrnent of management.
These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are aPProPriately reflected in the

financial statements.

2.17 Share capital and Other Equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Prior Period Items

Material prior period errors are corrected retrosp€ctively by restatint the comParative amounts for
prior period presented in which the error occurred or if the error occurred before the earliest period

presented, by restating the opening balance sheet.



2,19 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the

shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the

shareholders and weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding
during the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

2.20 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash flows is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 'Statement

of Cash Flows'.

The areas involving citical estimates or judgments are:

Useful life of property, plant and equiPment:

The estimated useful lile of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors including
the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability
of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures

required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The Company reviews at the end of each reporting date the useful life of plant and equipment, and

are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Provisions and contingencies:

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in

accordance with krd AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets". The

evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has required best judgment by management

regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. Should circumstances change following

unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

Estimates and iudgments are periodically evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectatiors of futurc events that may have a financial impact on the company and

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for current and deferred tax, including

amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Nei

that are believed to be reasonable under the circunstances.

Income Taxes:

3. Critical Estimates and fudprents

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which may

significantly vary from the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgment while
applying the company's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of iudgment or

complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adiusted due to estimates and

assumptions tuming out to be different than those originally assessed.



POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 4/ Business Combination

Pursuant to gusiness Transfer Agreement signed between Power Grid Corporation of lndia Ltd. (POWERGRID, Holding

Company) and the Company, Telecom Undertaking of POWERGRID has been transferred as a going concern and on a slump sale

basis effective from 1st October, 2023. As Telecom Undertaking is transferred from Holding Company, the slump sale has been

accounted in accordance with "Pooling of lnterest Method" laid down by Appendix C of lndian Accounting Standard 103 (lND

AS 103) : ( Business Combination of entities under common control), notified under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, all

assets and liabilities of Telecom Undertaking have been recorded in the books of account of the Company at their existing

carrying amounts and in the same form. Comparative accounting period presented in the financial statements of the Company

has been restated for the accounting impact of the transfer, as stated above, as if the purchase has occurred from the

beginning of the comparative period in the financial statements i.e. 1st April 2022.

{ in crore)

Particulars As at 1 October, 2023

632.24

300.57

0.04

7.22

940.07

249.74

6.78

34.92

16.22

!07.70

ASSETS

lYon{urlent assets

Property Plant and Equipment

Capital work-in-progress

lntangible assets

Other non-current assets

Current assets

lnventories

FinancialAssets

Trade receivables

Other current financial assets

Other current assets

1,247.77TotalAssets

3.74
277.59

274.73

2.10

10.99

117.93

185.58

1.32

318.02

Current liabilltles
Financial Liabilities

Trade payables

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other current financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Provisions

Non-current liabllities
Financial Liabilities

Other non-current financial liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Total Liabilities
555.02consideration paid for rchase of Telecom Undertaking lrom POWERGRID

FollowinE are the assets and liabilities taken over bv the comoanv on 1 october,2023

592.75



PowERGRID Telesewices timited

({ in crore)

Particulars

Year Ended March 31,2023

Eefore Efted of Business

Combination

Efted of Telecom
Undertaklng purchased trom
POWERGRID

Revired Balance Sheet post

efted ot Business

Combination

assEnt
llonrurant asiets

Propeny Plant and Equipment

Capital work-in-progress

lntanSible assets

Other non-current assets

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Cunrnt ats€t5
lnventories
Fanancial fu5ets

Trade receivables

cash and cash equivalents

Othercurrent financial assets

Other current assets

5.06

0.02

0.14

636.43

255.74

0.05
'7.21

(0.14)

636.43

255.78

5.11

s.22 499.33 904.55

3.86

0,01

26.98

206.85

5.20

37.28

26 98

2(r.85
3.E6

s.20

37.29

1_47 276.tl 280.18

Total Assets 9.09 1,L75.U 1,184.73

EQUITY ATD TIASILfnES

Eq!tty

€quity Share capital

Other Equity

on"cunent ll.bilitict
FinancialLiabilities

Lease liabilitiet
other non-current financial liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities(Net)
Other non-current liabilities

Cu.rtnt llabllhles
FinancialLiabilities

Lease liabilities

Trade payables

{A)totaloutstandinS dues of micro enterprises and small

€nterpri5es
(8) totaloutstandinS dues ofcreditors other than micro

enterprises and small enteaprises

other current fi nancial liebilities

Other current liabilities

Provisions

9.00

(0.39) 388 28

9.00

387.89

8.61 388.28 396.89

22.25

4.42

22.29

194.15

22.25

4.42

22.29

194.15

243.11 243.11

0.48

0.78

5.81

23.60

174.68

335.64

2.74

078

6.81

23.50

175.16

335.64

2.74

0.48 544.25 544.71

Toral Liabilitie5 0.48 7A7 36

Total €quity and Liabilities 9.09 t,t75.64 1,184.73

Note 4/ Business combihation (contd.)

Re-stated Balahce Sheet as at 31 March 2023

741.44



POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 4/ Business Combination (Contd.!

Re-stated ment of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 3lst Ma rch 2023

i in crore)

Year Ended March 31,2023

Revised balance sheet
post effect of Business

Combination

Before Effect of Business

Combination

Effect of Telecom

undertaking purchased

from POWCRGRID

Particulars

803.69

9.71,

803.69

9.520.19

0.19 813.21

37.05

79.27

390.75

37.05

79.O3

390.72
o.24
0.03

507.O7505.80o.27
306.33

1.38

306.41

1.40

(0.08)

(0.0 2 )

1.381.40(0.02)

304.9s305.01(0.06)

304.9s305.01(0.06)

Revenue From Operations

Other lncome

fotal lncome
EXPENSES

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total €xpcnses

Profrt/( [ossl Before Tax

Tax expense:

Current tax

Deferred tax

Profit for the period

Other Comprehensive lncome

Total comprehensive lncome for the period

813_40



POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 4/ Business Combination (Contd.)

Re-stated Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31st March 2024
({ in crore

Profit & Loss for the year

ended Mar€h 31,2024

without common control
adiustment

Revised Profit & Loss

post eftect of Business

Combination

6 Month of Telecom

Undertakint
Particulars

900.51

9.55

430.50

6.34

470.Or

3.21,

910.05436.84 471.22

12.74

88.63

434.84

15.71

42.45

223.08

t7.o7
46.18

2L7.76

281.24 275.Ot 556.25

198.21

42.78

(1.e0)

353.81

42.78

(2.63)

15s.60

(0.73)

40.15(0.73) 40.88

1s6.33 157.33 313.66

156.33 15?.33 313.66

Revenue From Operations

Other lncome

Total lncome
EXPENSES

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expens€s

Proflt/(Loss) Before Tax

Tax expense:

Current tax

Deferred tax

Profit for the period

Other Comprehensive lncome

Total comprehensive lncome for the period



2

5

t

fiq
a

i!?il

I

Et
ET
I

t6 -stt
ES:3:3

:riE
!!ir

f

I

t
t

EI

3 a!g!ilirl

8i
I

I!l!,
,Ei;!= rii :
t i, E .-t;:. I E"
:6 -zI;!

ri::'Eiigi!i
i3I:5i!Er!sEE:r'gtlE!!t.'!I Eri5glt E

8

56

:-
8*

B

I

7

i

n
t

Ir
:
I

6

EE
iE
5

a

t

t

E

R3rEciE;eE

Tii:
a!

fgE
!E

i= i;i !!d t9? E -i:: P :{
!9 S!eZ

riiiEiiii?;:,
;;agiiE-!g{."iI E*!Ei!5 E

I -r.t-.
i:
i -!!ii
iP
i;
!!!e!



Anmxur( -lI
POWERG RID Teleservices Limited
Note s/Property Plant and Equipment

Further Notes:

1. The company is utilising the transmission assets of its holding company for providing Telecommunication service

and sharing 10% of its revenue to DlCs as per the order of CERC. These transmission assets shall be handed over

back to the holding company as and when required for its core business.

-Vr,oA-ffi
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POwERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 6/capital work in progress (contd.)

Details of Construction stores
in crore

As at 31 March 2023
(RestatedlParticulars As at 31 March 2024

280.04

0.04

18 3.28

280.08 183.28

Construction Stores

Telecom Materials
Others

Total
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POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 8/Other non-cuffent Assets

(Unsecured considered d unless otherwise stated) (l in crore)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2023

(Restat€d)

0.07

0.08

0.01

o.77

0.15

1.38

o.74

25.42

4.59

0.18

1.53

0.15

0.02

5.35

Advances for Cafrital Erpenditure
Unsecured

a. Against bank guarantees

b. others

Advances other than for Capital Erpenditure
Security Deposits

Advances recoverable in kind or for value to be received

Balance with Authorities
Advance tax and Tax deducted at source#

others*
30.75 5.52

Total 32.24 7.23

Further notes:

S Net of Current Tax Liabilities - Note 26.

'Others include Prepaid expenses etc.



POwERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 9/lnventories
({ in crore

As at 31 March 2023
(Restatedl

As at 31 March 2024Particulars

26.7r
0.23

0.04

L7 .77

0.50

0.10

Components, Spares & other spare parts

Loose tools

Consumable stores
14.37 26.98Total
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POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 1l/cash and cash equivalents
< in

As at 31 March 2023
(Restated)As at 31 March 2024Particulars

3.86

3,13

3.93

Balance whh banks-

-ln Current accounts

-ln term deposits (with maturity less than 3 months)(including interest accrued)

7.06 3.85Total



PowERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note l2/ Bank balances other than Cash & cash equivalents
in crore

As at 31 March 2023
(Restated)As at 31 March 2024Particulars

36.43ln Term Deposits having maturity over 3 months but upto 12 months

(including interest accrued)

36.43Total



POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Notel3/Other current financial assets

As at 3l March 2023

(Restated)As at 31 March 2024Particulars

4.75

1.05

3.27

32.52

1.56

Contract Assets S

Advance to/Receivable from Related Parties fi#

Others Sflf
5.20Total

Unse€ured considered unless otherwise stated)

Further notes:

f Refer Note 36 for disclosure as per lnd AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with customers'.

,ts Details of related parties are provided in Note 43.

S*fi Others include Amount recoverable from Customers, Other advance, etc.

(< in crore)

37.35



POWERGRID Teleservices limited

Note 14/Oth€r current assets

Unsecured considered unless otherwise

Further notes:
*Others include input tax credit - GST etc.

tn

As at 31 March 2023
(RestatedlAs at 31 March 2024Pafticulars

6.25

1.18

0.84

1.39

7.43

29.86

2.23

13.24

Advances r€coverable in kind or for value to be received

Contractors & Suppliers

Balance with Authorities

Others*

other than for Capital Expenditure

37.2975.47Total
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POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 16/Other Equity

< in crore

As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2023

(Restated)Particulars

(0.33)

(0.06)

(0.3e)

157.33

l4L.L7l

775.77

(21.70)

1.13

(0.3e)

230.01

305.01

l.L46.74\

388.28

1s6.33

110.41

(6ss.02)

(20.s7l

388.28

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Net Profit for the period

lnterim dividend paid

Balance at the eod o, the year (Al

Common Control Adiustment A/c

Balance at the beginning of the year

Net Profit for the period

Adjustment pursuant to Common Control transactions

Purchase Consideration

Balance at the end of the year (€)

Capital Reserve

Ealance at the beginning of the year

Recognised during the year

Adjustment during the year

Balance at the end of the year (81

387.8995.20Total (A+B+C)



POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 17/ Borrowings (Non-current)

As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2023

(RestatedlParticula rs

37.23

(0.e3)

36.30

Unsecured

Loan from Power Grid Corporation of lndia Limited (HoldinB Company)

Current maturities of Non Current Borrowing (Refer note 21)

({ in crore

Further Notes: -

1) Loan extended to the company by its Holding Company is at floating interest rate which is reset periodically. The

prevailing interest rate on the loan is7.35o/o p.a and the loan is repayable in equal quarterly lnstallments over a period

of 11 Years starting from 31st March 2025, with prepayment facility without any additional charges.

2) There has been no default in repayment of loan or payment of interest thereon as at the end ofthe period.

3) Refer Note 43 for details of loan from Related Party.



PowERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 18/other non-current financial liabilities
in crore)

As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2023

{Restated}
Particulars

Deposits/Retention money from contractors and others 7 .34 4.42

4.42Total 7.14

ilEr



({ in crore)

Partiaulars As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 Ma.ch 2023

(Reitated)

A. Deferred Tax Liabilitiei

Difference in book depreciation and tax depreciation 20.s7 33.48

Deferred Tar tiabilities (A) 20.57 33.48

B. Deterred Tax Assets

Others 2.O4 11.19

Deferred Tax Assets (B) 2.M 11.19

Deferred Tar Liabilities (N€t) (A-B) 18.53

POWERGRID Tele5ervices l-imited

Note 19/ Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

(i an crore)

Particulars
Property Plant and

Equipment
Others Total

As at 01.04.2022 33.02 33-02

charted/{credited) to profit or loss 0.46 0.46

charged/(credited) to ocl

As at 31.03.2023 33.48 33.48

charged/(credited) to profit or loss (16.03) 4.25 (11.78)

Charged/(credited) to capital reserve (1.13)

charged/(credited) to ocl

As at 31.03.2024 t5.12 4.25 20.57

Property Plant and

Equlpment
Others TotalParticulars

11.99 0.12 12.11As at 01.04.2022

(0.s2)(0.s4) 0.02charged/(credited ) to profit or loss

charged/(credited) to OCI

0.1411.05As at 31.03.2023

(e.1s)(s.1s)Charged/(credited) to profit or loss

charBed/(credited) to capital reserve

charged/(credited) to oCl

2.O41.90 0.14As at 31.03.2024

({ in crore

Pafticulars

For the yea. ended
31 Mar.h 2024

(Restated)

Fortheyearended
31 March 2023

(Restated)

lncrease/ (Decrease) in Deferred Tax l-iabilities (11.78) 0.46

oecrease/ (lncrease) in Delerred Tax Assets 9.15 0.92

Amount charyed/ (credited) to profit or lots (2.63) 1.38

lncrease/ (Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities

Amount cha.ged/ (.redited)to ocl

Not

Further Notesr

Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilitie5

22.29

(1.13)

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets

11.19

RecoEnised in Statement of Profit and Lots/Other Comprehensive ln.ome {OCll



Further Notes:
* Refer Note 36 for disclosure as per lnd AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'.

({ in crore)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024
As at 3l March 2023

(Restated)

Advance from customers * 2t4.76 1.94.1.5

Total 214.76 194.15

POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 2o/other non-current liabilities



POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 2l/Borrowings (Current)
l in crore

Further Notes: -

1) Refer Note 17 for terms of repayment of borrowings.

2) There has been no default in repayment of loan or payment of interest thereon as at the end of the period.

3) Refer Note 43 for details of loan from Related Party.

As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2023

(Restated)Particulars

0.93

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Rupee Term Loans (unsecured)

Loan from M/s Power Grid Corporation of lndia Ltd. (Holding Company)

0.93Total
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POWERGRIO Teleservices Limited

Note 23/other current financial liabilities
(< in crore

Forther notes:

Disclosur€ with regard to Micro and Small enterprises as required under'The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006" is tiven in Note 39.

* Details of amount payable to related parties are provided in Note 43
*' Others include payble to contractors etc.

As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2023

(RestatedlParticulars

0.05

61.25

64.50
0.48

48.93

44.42

L73.70
2.57
3.85

0.05

164.54 175.16

lnterest accrued on borrowings frcm
Power Grid Corporation of lndia Limited (Holding Company)

(Xhers

Dues for capital expenditure
Oeposits/Retention money from contractors and others
Related partiesa

others *t

154.59 r75.76Total



PowERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 24/Other current liabilities
in crore

Further notet:
t Refer Note 36 for disclosure as per lnd AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

As at 31 March 2023

(Restated)As at 31 March 2024Particulars

315.83

19.81

169.23

19.69
Advances from customers *

Statutory dues
33s.64188.92Total

t{s{l



POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 25lProvisions
tn crore

As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2023

(Restated)Particulars

0thers
il Downtime Service Credit-Telecom

As per last balance sheet

Additions during the year

Amounts adjusted during the year

Closing Balance

iil Provision Others

As per last balance sheet

Additions/(adjustments) during the year

closint Balance

t.32
) ))
L71,

1.83

7.42

(1.42)

3.25

8.59

L0.52

L.t2

2.26

(0.84)

1.42

Total 1.83 2.74



POwERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 26/Current Tax Liabilities {Net}
1in crore

As at 31 March 2023
(Restated)Particulars As at 31 March 2024

42.74

42.78

42.78

Taxation (lncluding interest on taxl
As per last balance sheet

Additions during the year

Amount adjusted during the year

Total

Net off against Advance tax and TDS

Closing Balance



PowERG RID Teleservices Limited

Note 27/Revenue from Opetations
in crore)

For the year ended

31 March 2023
(Restated)

For the year ended

31 March 2024
(Restatedl

Particulars

834.95

64.34

7.22

7 48.28

54.45

0.96

Sale of services

rPl

NLD

tsP

900.51 803.59Total



POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 28/Other income
(< in crore)

Particulars

Forthe year ended

3l March 2024
(Restated)

Forthe year ended
31 March 2023

(Restated)

lnterest income from finan€e assets held al amortised cost

lnterest income from lndian Banks

lnterest from advances to contractors

Others

Provisions written back

Fair Value Sain on initial recognition of Financial liability

Miscellaneous income I

Less: Transferred to expenditure during construction (Net) - Note 32

o.27

0.01

0.19

0.07

0.28

0.59

3.89

4.90

0.26

5.36

1.28

2.95

9.38 9.59

9.56

0.11

9.85

0.14

Total 9.55 9.77

Further Notes:

*Miscellaneous income include Liquidated Damages Recovered, Other lncome, etc



POWERGRID Teleservices [imited

Note 29/Finance costs
(1 in crore

For the year ended

31 March 2024
(Restated)

For the year ended

31 March 2023
(Restated)

Particulars

3 6.59

0.48

0.04

32.26

0.10

0.85

37.|L33.21

0.060.43

lnterest and finance charges on financial liabilities at amortised cost

Unwinding of discount on financial liabilities

lnterest on Loan from Power Grid corporation of lndia Limited (Holding

Company)

lnterest on Lease Liability

Other Finance charges*

Less: Transferred to Expenditure during Construction (Net) - Note 32

37.05Total

Nil

12.78

rOther Finance charges include lnterest paid to DOT.



POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 30/Depreciation and amortization expense
(1 in crore)

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
(Restated)

For the year ended

31 March 2023
(Restated)

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Amortization of lntangible assets

Depreciation on ROU Assets

86.80

0.29

L.54

78.26

0.26

0.75

Total 88.53 79.27



o
t t

(< in crore)

For the year ended

31 March 2024
(Restatedl

For the year ended

31 March 2023
(Restated)

Particulars

0.31

56.12

2.23

0.28

70.98

1.28

84.65

2.O7

9.20

0.26

0.3 2

0.o7

1.18

0.38

58.35

115.55

5.34

0.29

0.01

0.14

0.01

72.26

115.09

4.95

0.25

0.02

89.03

1.89

11.61

2.74

0.33

o.02

0.01

0.16

0.01

0.04

0.01

0.03

17.05

0.06

1.89

2.3r
1.20

0.39

0.01

64.24

34.21

0.43

0.02

21.51

0.03

t.47
1.99

1.06

0.43

1.10

70.00

31.30

0.10

15.29

0.03

0.52

0.05

399.9s

9.20
444.L8

9.34
390.75414.84

Repair & Maintenance
Buildings

Plant & Machinery

Telecom equipments
Others

Manpower Cost

Power charges

Expenses of Diesel Generating sets

Stores consumed

Right of Way charges-Telecom

Patrolling Expenses-Telecom

Last Mile connectivity-Telecom

Legal expenses

Professional charges

Consultancy expenses

Communication expenses

Tender expenses

Payments to Statutory Auditors
Audit Fees

ln Other Capacity

Arrears

Advertisement and publicity

Printing and stationery
Books Periodicals and Journals

EDP hire and other charges

Rent #

CERC petition & Other charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Security Expenses

Hiring of Vehicle

lnsurance

Rates and taxes

License Fees to DOT

Bandwidth charges dark fibre lease charges (Telecom)

Foreign Exchange Rate Variation

Provisions for Doubtful loans, advances, debts, claims etc

Less:Transferred to Expenditure during Construction (Net) - Note 32

Total

S Refer Note 40 for Short-term lease expenses

POWERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 31/Other expenses

0.78

0.05



POwERGRID Teleservices Limited

Note 32/ Expenditur€ during construction (Net)
(l in crore

For the year ended
31 March 2024

(Restatedl

For the year ended
3l Merch 2023

(Restated)
Particula.s

9.22

0.01

0.06

0.05

9.02

0.01

0.15

0.02

A. Other Expens€s

Manpower Cost

Legal expenses

Professional charges

Tender expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

9.209.34Total (A)

0.06

B. Finance Costs

a) lnter€st and finance charges on financlal liebilities at amortised cost

lnterest on Loan from Power Grid Corporation of lndia Limited (Holding Company)

Others

0.06Total (B) 0.43

0.11

0.07

0.07

C.Oth€r lncome

lnterest from Contractors

Miscellaneous income
0.11 0.14Total(c)
9.66 9.L2Grand Total (A+B-C)

0.06

0.37



Not 3:i Fin.ci.lRiskM.n t ment

The Compan/s principal financial liabilities comprise loans dmominated in Indian rupees, trad€ payables and other payables. The main purpose
of these financi,al tiabilities is to finance the CoErpan/s capital investments and oFrations.

The Company's ptin ipal financial ass€ts include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are tenerated lrom its
oPerations.

The Company's activities expo6€ it to the Iolowing Iinancial risks, namely,
(A) Ctedit risk,
(B) Liquidity fisk.
(C) Maiket risk.
This not€ pEsents inlormation r€tarding the compan/s expGure, obj€dives, policies and processes for heasuring and nranadnt these risks.

The management of financial risks by the Company is summarized below: -

(A) Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the dsk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a Iinancial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financi,al loss.
The Company is €xpo6ed to credit risk ftom its operatint activities on account o, trade re.eivables-

A default on a financial asset is when the counterpa*y fails to make conEactual payrnents within 3 years of when they fall due. Thjs definition of
d€fault is determined considering the business environment in which the Company operates and other nracro-economic factors.

Ass€ts are written-off when ther€ is no Easonable expectation of recovery, such as a debto! declaring banlruptcy or failing to entage in a
rePayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written ofI, the Company continues to engage in enlorcement activity to
attempt to recover the r€ceivable due. Where such ftcoveries are made, these are recoSniz€d in the statement of prolit and loss.

(i) Tr.de Re.eiv.ble6

Trade receivables consisl of receivables rclatint to telecom seryicB of 1419.32 cror€ as on 31 MarctL 2024 (t250.76 cIore as on 31 Marct! 2OZ|)

(i0 Otlr.r Fir.ncirl Arsatr (axcludint tr.de receiv.bl.s d contr.cl .s..t )

Cr6h .trd cash aquivaLnts

'Ihe Company held cash and cash equivalents of t7.06 clore (Previous Year a3.86 crore). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bar*s and do
not have any signilicant credit risk.

Dlpo6it with b.nts.nd fin n i.lin litutions

The Company held depooits with banls of a36.43 crl)Ie (PEvious Year 40.00 crorc). Term depcits ale placed with banks and have netlitible
credit risk-

(tii) Expo.me to c€dit rirl

Provision for expected ct€dit lo6see

Fin.nci.l r3sets for which loss .llowaNe ig e.6ued u3ing 12 month exPected credit lootes

The Company has assets where the counter- Parties have sufficient caPacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is very low- At

initial recognition, financial assets (excludinS trade rc(eivables and contract assets ) are considered as having negli$ble credit risk and the risk has

As :t 31 March, 2024
As:t 31 March, 2023

(Restated)Pa icula$

Fin.ncial assets for whi.h loss ellowance is me.6ur€d usint 12 months ErPected Credit Lo6ses

(EcL)

Other non-current financial assets

3.867.06Cash and cash equival€nts

36.43Deposits with banks and financial institutions

1.0534.ottOther .urrent financial ass€ts

4.9"177 _57Total

Financial assets for which loss allowance is me.6rred usint Life time ExPected Credit Losse!

419.12Trade receivables
4.I5

(i')
(.)

not increased from initial recotrution. Therefore, no loss allowance for has been recognised excePt as sPecilied in this not€

250.76



(b) Fitlrncid eBs.t6 for *hich loss.llow.rce is mer6ured usint life trme exFcted credit los.e6
The Company has customers majority of whom are tovemment entities with capacity to meet the obligations and therefote the risk of default is

nedi$ble. Further, mahatement believes that the unimpaircd amounts that are 30 d.ys past due date are stifi collectible in tuI, bas€d on the
payment s€curity mechanism in place and historical pa),ment behaviour.
Considering the above factors the trade receivables and conhact assets continue to have a negliSible credit risk on initial recoition and thereafter
on each reporting date.

Coruidering the above factors and the plevalent .etulations, the rade receivables and conEact ass€ts continue to have a netligible credit risk on
initiial recognition and thereafter on each reporting date.

(v)

(vi) ReconcilirtionofimpairmentloB3provbionB

The movement in the allowance for impairment in resp€d of financial assets duint the year was as (ollows:

Based on historic derault rates, the Company believes that, apan from the above, no impaiment allowane k necessary in respect of any othe!
assets as the amounts are insignificant.

(B) Liquidity Risk

At int.dly6i. of t .de rc<eiv.blcs

The ageing analysis of the rade r€ceivables is as below:

Ateint Unbilled Not due
0-30 days
prst due

31-50 days
p.st due

51-90 days
p.st duc

91-tm
days past

due

More than 120

deys past due

73.62 145.64 23.27 38.13 5.30 133.06 119 32
Gross carrying amount as on 31

Marct! 2024

Gross carryint amount as on 31

March, 2023 (Restated)
35.82 43.33 25.96 16.1,t 1.86 127.65

Trade receiv.blesPartidars

Brl.nce as rt 01 April,2022 47.63

lmpaiment Ioss recotnised/ (.ev€Ised) \3.72')

Balance.s at 31 March,2023 (R€stated) 43.91

lmpairment loss recoFised/ (reversed) 74.7tJ

58.61A.hnce rs .t 3t M.r.h, 2024

TotalBeyond 5 yeersWithin a ye.r Between 1-5 yearsContr.ctu.l m.turities of f inancial li.bilities

As at 31 March, 2024

53 3126.1323.513.67Bonowings (including interest outflows)
123.22123.22Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Ir,l)S24.169.382.24t-ease liabilities

1731r0.02164.59 ti srlOthers
3a6.0250.6141.69293.72Tot.l

As at 31 March, 2023 (Restated)

Borrowin$ (inchding interest outflows)
30.4130.41Trade payables

Other f inancial liabilities
:t9 l027 6tl9.25247Lease liabilities

Others
180.74558r75.16

250.5527.68208.04 14.83Total

Uquidity risk management implies maintaining sulficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of fundint throuth an adequate

arnount of committed credit facilities to meet oblitations when due. The Company has ente.ed into lnter-Corporate l.oan Agreement for Fundint
of its obligations. For thir Company provided quarterly cashllows in advance to Holding Company with Montl y rcqutement.

The Company depends on both intemal and extemal sources of liquidity to provide workint capital and to fund capital expenditure.

M.tu.itieB of finrn iel li.biuties
The table below analyses the Compan/s financial liabilities into relevant maturity Sroupings based on their conhactual mahrrities lor all non_

derivative financial liabilities.

The amount disclosed in the table is the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Tot.l

250.76

No{



(c) MARIGT RrsK

Market dsk is the risk that the Iair vatue oI futrrl€ cash oows of a financial insEumetrt will lluctuate because of changes in market pric€s. Market
risk comp.ises two qlPes oI rfuk:

(i) Currency risk

li0 lnterest rate risk

(i) CuEency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk in respect of procuremmt of goods and services whose purchas€ consid€ration ale in foreigr currency.
The Company's expocue to foreitn currency risk not hedted by a derivative instrument or otherwis€ at the end o, the rcportiry p€riod is as
follows:-

Particul.rc Amount in [oreign Currency ( in Cror€) Amount (l in Crore)

As.t 31.03-2024 As.t 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Trade Payables/deposits and
retention money

USD 014 0.14 11.62 11.46

(i0 Interest raie risk

The comPany has talen borrowings from Parent Company on co6t to co6t basis. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because of the cash
flows associated with floating rate borowin8s. The loans being extended to the company by parent company ale at floating interest rate which
tets reset periodically. The Compahy's interest late risk G not considered significant; hence sensitivity analysis for the risk is not dis(losed.



Not g Ad.lidoD.l R.Aul.lory hfo@non t Fr S<l*dql.III to alt Corp.nl.. Act,2or3

.) Tltq€ arc no..sei of inmovable prcp€niB wh@ title de€& aie nol in the nameof the ComPany

b) Agrng of Capilal Work in ProtrEs i! a! follows:

For capitalworl-in pr 
'E 

(CWIP), *ho*.ompbtior inovdducdh6eKed.d it3 ct.ohp.ted io its qidEl ple& CmP @mpletion s.h.dule it as follows:

For th€ proi€.t! 6! on 31 Mffih 202{i

As at 31.03.2024

366.62 169.70

P.oi6ts remporanly susFnded

366,62 3.06 469.70

As al 31.03.2023 (Rest.ted)

25{ 25 0{9 I04 255,78

Projets tempor.nly Suspended

25425 0-.r9 1.0.t 255,78

C)

Tot.l

EsrablFhmenr ol t-lNrS Io. ILL) 5.09 5.09

Pa.l^Eez 221 2.22

Pt8-M-r, M-2&M-3 29.3s

rk-&S&Tet 0.11 0_41

Pk8-U, V,W, X,l-1,1-2 & l.3 76 03 76.03

Prcurehftr of NoKIA sp"E 008 0.08

Pl1n!1lHt of Rouls & Catd
0.06

T€le.om BB Augmmtahon 0.00

For the prcisls as on 31 M.r.h 2023:

Esrablishmenr oI UMS for lt.D 7.@

.l r0 t.{0

Pkg-Ml, M-2 & M-3 .10 0.1 t0.04

PkB-R,5&Tetc .l.ll .1.33

Pk8-U, V, W, X,I-1,1 2& l-3 98.tl

PMummt of Route, & Cdd

Tel€<om BB Aushentation 5li 5_r5

Aut. of lel. N€twork (Pk8.-L) 3.77 Ln
Aurila,ary Systm Prciet 001 0.01

Backt'one Augmmtation for
85Nl RRI

010

NKN Proiect for bootiry of 005 0.05

160 1.60

sMI's DcPs at NRTCC. Okhla 1.11 1.11

d) I}E ompany do€ not have dy Intangible !s*b undcr d€veloPm6t as m 3l'03-2024 & 3l 03'mB'

c) No pmcediry h.6 been initiared d Fdlnt agaird tlE compary fn hokfing dy lsumi pDp€rty undd tlE Prohibn@ of Seruni PrcPertv TEtl*tioN A't 19E6 (uE

arEded) md rul€6 m.de thersund6 ,3 at the sd ol dE fina,rial )c.r.

0 ftre Co p.ny *t! rct eJlcudEd any wotlint capit l limii s€culid agairut cutMt 
'!s€b 

by ey FirurE tstitutic

8),IrEcomp.nywsnotd€cla'edasawihrldefaulterbyyb.ntorfilurriall$titltionoro|herlad€tdurirydPfin.mi.lyear'

Rcl.tioEhlP wi.h th. Sttu.L off
.oDP.ny, if.ny. to b. di3.l6.d

I
N.t@ of lr.N..tiou with

Nee of rttu.l off ComPr.Y

ffi(4\IShubhra Communtabons Ltd

h) Relationship with Skuck off.onpani6

29 35

0,10



R@fere Media Pvt. Ltd 0.02 002

Ambala BMdb.nd Servi.es Pvt.
Lrd. 000

EtFditive llrlorch Pvt. Ltd

Glan Solutim lrdia Pvt. Ltd 003 003

Artos Tel<oh Pvt. Lld.(OfrC) 0.08 0 ott

Yash T(hno Media Pvt Ltd.

Blue sl,v CotMukation

VL<om Media Pvt Ltd. 002 002

Beamon TRhnologies Pvl. Ltd. 004

Vaishali Comput6h Private

Matri, Telc.om Solutions Pivar€
0m

Syn68y T€h.mmi(ations
r!r. Lld. 0.00 0t6

k)

i) TlE C.mFry d6.ot h.ve any Ol. t6 6 dE Ar.ers oI th. Company.

i) 'Ihc .omP$y h.s c@pli€d wirh the nmb.r of Ly€rs prB'iH ud6 cl.ur€ (87) of *crion 2 oI the A.t Ed witl! tte Companies (R.ldicrin m number of byers) Rut6,
2Ot7 duriry the fiEirirl year.

o52

005

c) Debl S6vi.e CoveSe Rltio

Prcfit fc the Fiod +

Depr€ciition a.d amorrizatid
sp€nelFiMme.cts+FERV
+ l^s on Sal€ .f Fir.d Aser*

12 51 ton I6',r1,

d) Retum on Euity R.tio
ECutty

0 5.t in &uity

e) lnventory tumover ratio Revenue frcm Op€ratioG l9 70 29 74

0 Tnde R@ivabl€ Tu.nov6
R€vdue frcm Openhm 269 3n :\

t) Tlade payable tumovn raho
GTodg OttET EiFru€ C) FERV,

Provisiois, t s6 on diepo6.r oI
PPE

1520 +l'!,

h) Nel capilal tumov.r ratio Revoue toh Op€nborc -190 r8 -3 04

0.35

i) Retun on capital employd
Eamints b€Iore i.leBl dd Tanrible Net

0 Jrl ll

k) Relum on invBtmml In.ome lrcm lnv6tment5 &

D nE.qnFny ha6.or rc.eiv.d/advarrd or lo.n d or invec.d tur'd! (eitfter bonowed f!'xt! d sh.E premium or y orh€t 3oure.6 kind oI tundt) dmuth
Int.'ln di,.'i6 dutint th€ fin ri.l y€ar.

m) The Company d€ nor have lny EaE cri,on rhat war noi Eorded in tlE b@k ot r.counb .t!d hs beor.urcnd€rtd or dislG.d s in.ome duirt th€ year in tlE tai

ar!.ssmelib undcr th€ Imom€ Tar Act 1 1.

n) nle Company hs not traded d inv€d in Cry?lo dnen.y o. Virtual C!t16.y durint th? Iinan.ial yea

l**.*0,*
l*-.*,*



Note 35 a) Some balances of Trade Receivables, Recoverable shown under Assets, Tiade payables and Other payables shown
under Liabilities include balarces subject to confir:mation/ reconciliation and consequential adiustments if any. However,
reconciliations are carried out on ongoing basis. The manatement does not expect any material adiustment in the books
of accounts as a result of the reconciliation.

b) In the oPinion of the management, the value of any of the assets other than Property, Plant and Equipment on
realization in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

Note 35 Dirlosure as per Ind AS 115 - "Revenuc from Contracts with Custom€r,,
a) The movement in conhact ass..ts during the year is as follows:

Particulars For the Year ended 31

March, 2024 (Restatedl
For the Year ended 31 Marcll

2023 (Restatedl
Balance at the beginning 4.15 5.16
Add: Revenue recognised during the period 3.27 4.l5
Less: Invoiced during the period 4.15 5.16
kss: lmpairment/reversal during the period

Add: Translation gain/ (Loss)
Balance at the end 3.27 tI.15

ln ctote

b) The movement in contract liability during the year is as follows:
ln ctote

c) The entity determines transaction price based on expected value method consideling its past experiences of refunds or
significant reversals in amount of revenue. ln estimating significant financing componenL management considers the
financing element inbuilt in the transaction price based on imputed rate of retum. Reconciliation of Contracted Price vis-a.
vis rcvenue recognized in profit or loss statement is as follows:

< in crore

Note 37 FERV Loss of t0.10 crore (Previous Year {0.43 crore) has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and l-oss

Note 36 BoEowing cost capitatised during the year is 40.43 crore (Previous Year {0.06 crore) in the resPective carrying amount of

Particulars For the Yeat ended 31

Ma(b 2024 (Restated)
For the Year ended 31 March,

2023 (Restated)
Balance at the bednning 509.98 592.82
Add: Advance billing during the penod 224.73 263.68
[-ess: Revenue recognised during the period
a) Fiom contract liability as at beginning of the period 324.23

contract liabilitv recognised during the periodb From 26.49 5.57
Add: Translation gain/(loss)
Balance at the end 383.99 509.98

Particulars For the Year ended 31

March, 2024 (Restated)
For the Year €nded 31 Malch,

2023 (Re6tated)

Contracted p ce 877.99 767.64

Add/ (Less)- Discounts/ rebates provided to customer
Add/ (Less)- Performance bnus

36.05Add/ (Less)- Adpstment for significart financing
component

28.52

Add/ (Less)- Other adiustments
803.59900.51Revenue recognised in profit or loss statement

Property, Plant and Equipment/CaPital work in (CWIP) as per Ind AS 23'BoEowing Costs'

340.95



Note 39 Based on inlormation available with the company, there are few supplies/service providers who are re8istered as micro,

small or medium enterprise under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006).

InJormation in respect of micro ard small enterprises as lequired by Companies Act 2013 and MSMED Act, 2006 is given
as under:

< in crore

Note tl() Discloeure as per lnd As 115 -'Le$ee'
a) ,{6 a Lessor - Finance Leases:

The company does not have any lease arrangements as a lesso!

The company has taken assets on lease such as office buildints and Plant & machinery etc. for various periods which are

assessed and accounted as per the requircments of lnd AS 116 - "kases" and required disclosures as Per the said Ind AS

are as follows:

ROU ssets:

Additions, bermination/disposal and depreciation charge on right of use ass€ts for the year and carryint amount of the

same as at the end of the financial year by class of underlying asset has been disclosed in Note 5 as a seParate line item

l-ease Liabilities:
fnt"r*t 

"r.p"n* 
o" tease liabilities for the year is shown under Note 29 and Total cash outflow for leases for the year has

been disclo6ed in statement of cash flow under financint activities as seParate line item and maturity analysis of lease

liabilities has been disclosed in Note 33.

Short leases

The company, during the financial year, has incurred 119.07 crore (Previous Year a15.10 crore) with resPect to short term

leases.

The company was committed to short term

14.12 Crore (Previous Year 11 83 Crore).

Tr.de P.yebles Others
As at 31

March, 2023
(Restated)

As at 31

March, 2024

A! at 31 Mar.t!
2023 (ReBtated)

AE at 31 Mirch,
m24

Sr. No Particulars

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
any supplier as at end of each accounting year:

22.67 6.81 0.25Principa)

1

lnterest

The amount of lnterest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of
the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond tlrc appointed day during each

account ng year

3
The amount of interest due and payable fo! the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the

appointed day duling the year) but without addin8 the interest
specfied under MSMED Act,2m6

.l
The amount of interest acclued and remaining unpaid at the end
of each accounting year

5 The amount of further interest remainint due and payable even

in the succeeding years, until such date when the inlerest dues as

above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the PurPose of
disallowance as a deductible exp€nditure under section 23 of the

MSMED Act 2006

Ieases and the to tment of such leases at the end of financial year was

b) As a Lessee:



Note 41 Corporate Social RBponsibility (CSR) Expensee

As per Section 135 of the Comparies Act, 2013 along with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

read with DPE guidelines no F.No.15 (13)/2011.DPE (GM), the Company is requted to spend, in every financial year, at

Ieast two per cent of the averate net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years

in accordance with its CSR Policy.

Sirlce, Company has not satisfied any of the criteria provided in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is
not required to spend ally amount for CSR activities.

Note 42 Fair Value Measurement
{ in crore

This section explains the iudtements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that
are measurd at fair value and financial instruments that arc measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are

disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prer bed under the accounting standard.

An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

{ in crore

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, balk balance, cash and cash equivalents, other curent

financial assets, short term borrowings and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair

values, due to their short-term nahrre

As at 31 Marclr 2024 As at 31 Marclg 2023

aRestatedl
Amortised cost

Financial Instruments by category

Amortised cost

Financial Assets
360.71 206.85Trade Receivables

3.86Cash & Cash Equivalents 7.06

36..13Bank Balances

Other Financial Assets
37.35 5.20Current

Non-Current
,141.55Total Finan.ial assets

Financial Liabilities
37.23Borrowings

723.22 30.-11Trade Pavables

Other Financial Liabilities
164.59 175.16Cufient

-t.-llNon-Current 7.34

i32.38 209.99Total finan(ial liabilities

As at 31 Marcl! 2024 As at 31 Marclu 2023
(Restated)

Fair valueFair value Carrying
Amount

Level

Carrying
Amount

Particulars

Financial Liabilities
37.012 37.2iBorrowings

4.87.1.427.31 8.06Deposits/retention money fuom contractors and

others
4.87{5.07 4.42u.57Total financial liabilities

Financial instruments that are measured at Amortised Cost:

275.97



For financial ass€ts that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

Level l: kvel l hierarchy includes financial instruments measur€d usint quoted prices. This includes listed equity bonds

which are traded in the stock exchanges, valued using the closing Price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, haded bonds) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as liftle as possible on
entity-specific estimates. lf all significant inputs rcquired to fai! value an instrument are observable, the instrument is

included in level 2.

Lev.l 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level

3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contin8ent consideration and indemnification assets included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the yeat. The company's policy is to tecognise transfers into and

transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

Valuation techtriqu€ used to determine fair value:

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial inskuments includes:

.the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

.the fair value of the remaining financial inskummts is determined using dirounted cash flow analysis

All of the resulting faii value estimates aie included in level 2.

Note,13 Disclorure as per Ind AS 24 - 'Relat€d Party DisclosEes'
(a) Hol

(b) Subsidiaries of H C

Name of entity Place of busines{
Country of incorporation

Proportion of Ownership
As at 31

March, 2024

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited lndia
.100"/.

t00%

Place of business/
Country of incorporation

Name of entity

lndiaPOWERGRID Vemagiri Trarsmission Limited
lndiaPOWERGRID NM Transmission Limited
lndiaI',OWERGRID Unchahar Transmission Limited
lndiafTOWERGRID Southem lnterconnector Transmission System Limited
IndiaPOWERGRID Medinipur Jeerat Transmission Limited
IndiaPOWERGRID Mithilanchal Transmission Limited
Indiar',OWERGRID Varanasi Transmission System Limited
lndiaIOWERGRID.f awaharpur Firozabad Transmission Limited
lndiaPOWERGRID Kheki Transmission Svstem Limited

POWERGRID Bhui Transmission Limited
IndiaTTOWERCRID Bhind Guna Transmission Limited
lndiaI'OWERGRID Aimer Phagi Transmission Limited
lndiaPOWERGRID Fatehgarh Transmission Limited
IndiaPOWERGRID Rampur Sambhal Transmission Limited
IndiaPO\ IERGRID Meerut Simbhavali Transmission Limited
lndiaCentral Transmission Utility of lndia Limited
lndiarOWERCRID Ramgarh Transmission Limited
IndiaPOWERCRID Himachal Transmission Limited
IndiaPOWERGRID Bikaner Transmission System Limited
IndiaPOWERGRID Sikar Transmission Limited
IndiaIOWERCRID Bhadla Transmission Limited ,a$4!ccx

o
t

As at 31

Marcb 2023

lndia



POWERCRID Aligarh Sikar Transmission Limited lndia
POWERGRID Energy Services Limited lndia
ITOWERGRID Narela Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Khetri Narela Transmission Limited)

lndia

POWERCRID Gomti Yamuna Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Mohadalgani Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Neemuch Transmission System Limited
(Erstwhile Neemuch Transmission Limited)

India

TTOWERGRID ER NER Transmission Limited
(Erstwhite ER NER Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Khavda II-B Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Khavda Il-B Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Khavda II-C Transmission Limited
(Erstwhi.te Khavda Il-C Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Khavda RE Transmission System Limited
(Erstwhile Khavda II-RE Transmission Limited)

lndia

POWERGRID Kf52 Transmission System Limited
(&stwhile KPS2 Tlansmission Limited)

India

T OWERGRID Kt53 Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile KI53 Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID ERWR Power Transmission Limited
(Erstwhi.le ERWR Power Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Raipur Pool Dhamtari Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Raipur Pool Dhamtali Transrnission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Dharamjaigarh Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Dharamjaigarh Transmission Limited)

lndia

POWIRGRID Bhadla Sikar Transmission Limited
(E$twhile Bhadla Sika! Tlarsmission Limited)

lndia

POWIRGRID Ananthpuram Kumool Transmission Limited
(EEtwhile Ananthpuram Kumool Transmission Limited)*

India

POWERGRID Bhadla III Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Bhadla III Transmission Limited)*

India

POWERGRID Ramgarh II Transmission Limited
(E6twhile Ramgarh II Transmission Limited)*

tndia

POWERGRID Beawar Dausa Transmission Limited
(E$twhile Beawar Dausa Transmission Limited)$

lndia

I,OWERGRID Bikaner Neemrana Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Bikaner III Neemrana Transmission Linited)$$

India

POWERGRID Neemrana ll Bareilly Transmission Limited
(Erctwhile Neemrana ll Bareilly Transmission Limited)$$

lndia

POWERGRID Vatamar Transmission Limited (Erstwhile Vataman Transmrssion
Limited)#

India

POWERGRID Koppal Cadag Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Koppal II Cadag II Transmission Limited)#

lndia

Sikar Khetri Transmission Limited ## lndia
Bidar Transmission limited ## India



'100% equity acquired by I,OWERGRID from PFC Consultint Lirnited, on 27.@.2023.
*100% equity acquired by POWERGRID fiom REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited on 26.10.2023

$100% equity acquired by POWERGRID flom PFC Consulting Limited on 30.10.2023.

#100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC Consulting Limited on 26.12.2023.

$$100% equity acquired by POWXRGRID from PFC Consulting Limited on 27.12.2023.

##100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited on 09.02.2024

(c) oint Ventures of H

(d) Aesociates of Hol

(e) Personnel

(0 Govemment Related Entitieo
The Company is a whotly owned subsidiary of Central Public Sector Undertaking (CI5U) controlled by Central

Govemment by holding majority of shares.

The Company has business transactions with other entities controlled by the GOI for procurement of capital equiPmenL

spares and services. Transactions with these entities are caried out at market terms on arms-lentth basis tfuough a

transparent price discovery process atainst open tenders, except in a few case6 of procurement of spates/services from
Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) for proprietary items/or on single tender basis due to urgency, comPatibility or

other reasons. Such single tender pro(urements are also done through a process of negotiation with prices benchmarked

Name of entity Place of business/ Country
of incorporation

Powerlinks Transmission Limited lndia
Torrent Power Grid Limited lnclia
Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited lndia
Sikkim Power Transmission Limited lndia
North East Transmission Company Limited India
National High Power Test laboratory Private Limited lndia
Bihar Grid Company Limited lndia
Energy Efficiency Services Limited lndia
Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited India
RINL POWERGRID TLT Private Limited (under process of liquidation) lndia
Butwal-Gorakhpur Cross Border Power Transmission Limited lndia
Power Transmission Company Nepal Limited Nepal

Place of businesy' Country of
incorporation

Name of entity

lndiaPOWERCRID Kala Amb Transmission Limited
lndiafTOWERGRID Jabalpur Trarsmission Limited
IndiaI,OWERGRID Warora Transmission Limited
tndiaPOWERGI{ID Parli Transmission Limited

Date of
Appointment

Date of
Cessationy'
Separation

DesignationName

Chairman 08.01.2024Shri Yatindra Dwivedi
Director 01.01.202.1Shri Purshoftam Agarwal
Director 0^t.72.2022Shri Vamsi Ramamohan Burra

"13.02.2024Dr Sunita Chohan Director
Chief Executive Off icer 07.02.2024Shri Vamsi Ramamohan Burra
Chief Financial CXficer 07.02.2024Shri Swarai Baneriee

18 07 2022 3t .72.202iDirertorShri Sreekant Kandikuppa
07.07.2024Director 23.06.2022Shri Ravindra Kumar Tyagi

08.o8.2022 2i."12.2023DirectorShri Ravisankar Canesan

Net

against available price data of same/similar items



The above kansactions are in the cou6e of normal day-to-day business operations and are not considered to be

significant keeping in view the size, either individually or collectively.

G) Outstanding brl.nce6 arising from saledpurchases of goodg end servicee

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related Parties:

I in crore

(h) Transactions with related parties
The followint kansactions occurred with related parties (excluding taxes)

{ in crore

As at 31 Marcb 2024 A6 at 31 March, 2023
(Restated)

Particulars

Amounts Payable
Power Grid Corporation of lndia Ltd, (Holding Company)

37.23Loans from Holding Company

0.05Interest Accrued on [oan
0.48n.82Other Payables

Amounts Receivable
Power Crid Corpoiation of tndia Ltd. (Holding Company)

72.10Other Receivables

Bihar Grid Company Limited ooint Ventule)
0.140.24Sale of Telecom Services

Energy Efficiency Services Limited (foint Venture)
1.181.80Sale of Telecom Services

National Hith Power Teet Laboratory Private Limited
ooint Venture)

0.0rSale of Telecom Services

For the year ended
31.03.2024 (Restated)

For the year ended 31.03.2023

(Restat€d)
Parti.ulars

Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd. (Holding Company)

56.00Purchase of Goods or Services - ManPower on secondment
basis

655.02Payable of Purchase Price on SlumP sale of Telecom

Undertaking
0.62Reimbursement of Expenses
3.61Repayment of Loan

{0.8-rAdditional Loan obtained during the year
0.10Interest paid on Loan

4"t.17Dividend Paid
.r0.35Sale of Telecom Services

169.35Collection of Money Received from Customers in
ITOWERGRID A/c

15.19Sharing of Revenue to DlCs through POWERGRID

Bihar Grid Company Limited ooint Venture)
0.210.24Sale of Telecom Services

Energy Efficiency servicee Limited (|oint Venture)
1.351.1.1Sale of Telecom Services

National High Power Test Laboratory Private Limited
(Joint Venture)

0.02Sale of Telecom Services



frnnexuru - Itr

Note a4 Sctment Inform.tion
The Board of Dir€ctors is the company's Chief operating deci6ion makel who monitors the operating results of its
business segmenb separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessmenl

One reportable segment has been identified on the basis of product/services. The company has a single rePortable

segment i.e.,Telecom Services

The operations of the company are mainly carried out within the count!'y and therefore there is no reportable

geographical segment.

Note 45 Capital and other Commitments
ln crore

Note 45 Contintent Liabilities and contingent aEsets

A. Contingentliabilities

Clairns against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of contingeart liabilities amount to 189.75 crore
(Previous Year {77.5{ crore) which includes claim of 125.01 crore (Previous Year {12.81 crore) rclated to Arbitsation

cases/ ROW cases.

B. Conting€nt Alsets
There is Nil Contingmt Assets as at 31st March 2024 and as at 31st March 2023

Note,lT
a)

Capital management
Ri6k Man.tement
The company's obictives when managing capital are to
-maximize the shareholder value;
-saJeguard its ability to continue as a going con(em;
-maintain an optiEral capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the company's capital management, equity capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The company manages its capital shucturc and makes

adiushnents in light of changes in economic conditions. To mahtain or adiust the capital structurc, the company may
adiust the dividend payment to shareholders, regulate investments in its proFcts, return capital to shareholders or issue

new shares. The company monitoE capital using debt-equity ratio, which is the ratio of long term debt to total net worth.
The company includes within long term debt, inbrest bearing loans and borrowings and current maturities of long-term
debt.

The debt ratio of the Com was as followor -

No changes were made in the obiectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31.03.2024 and
37.O3.2023.

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023

(Restated)
Particularc

1,v.96 290.59Estimad amount of contracts remaining to be exruted on
capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

Particulars As at 31 March, 2024 A6 at 31 March, 2023
(Restated)

Total debt (l in crore) 37.23

Equity ({ in crore) 7s9.22

Lonq term debt to Equity ratio 0.05 NA

au"r-w

396.89



b) Dividends
{ in crore

er share

Not€ ,18 Income Tax €xpenae

This note provides an analysis of the company's income tax expens€, and how the tax expense is aflected by non-

assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the ComPany's tax Position.

(a) In.ome tar expense
{ in crorc

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accountint Profit multiPlied by India's tax rate:
{ in crore

t(9
t

For the Yeat
ended 31

March, 2024

For the Year
ended 31

March, 2023
(Restated)

Particulars

4"t.'t7Interim dividend for the year ended 31.03.2024 of t0.62 (31.03.2023- Nil) per tully paid up
share

For the Year
ended 31

March, 2023

(Restated)

For the Year
ended 31

March, 2024
(Restated)

Particulars

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company
(in.)

313.66 304.95Total Earnings attributable to the equity holde$ of the comPany ({ in Crs.)
&,40,20,000 66,40,20,000Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

10 10Nominal Value Per Share

Earnings per share (Basic)

Without Business Combination
10.72 (0.04-Basic & Diluted

With Business Combination
4.59-Basic & Diluted

For the Year ended 31 Marcl!
2023 (Restated)

For the Year ended 31

March,2O24
Particulars

Current Tax
12.78Current tax on profits for the year
42.78Total current tax expense (A)

Deferred Tax expense
(2.63\ 1.38OriEination and reversal of temporary dilferences

1.38{2.531Total deferred tar expen6e^€nefit (B)
1.38lncome tax expense (A+B)

For the Year ended 31

March, 2024 (Restated)
For the Year ended 31 March,

2023 (Restated)
Particulars

306.33353.81Profit before income ta)( expense
89.0.1 77.10Tax at the Company's domestic tax tate o125.758 0/o

Tax effect of:
0.10Non-Deductible tax items

(o 64Tax exempt income
(6.4e)Deferred Assets for Deferred Tax Liability

(3e.1s) (n.rc)Common Control Adjustments
(0.0s)Unabsorbed tax losses

1.38(2.63\Deferred Tax expense/ (income)

Minimum altemate tax adjustments
1.3840.15Income tat expense

_-I__l

40.15



Note 49 Employe€ Bendits
The Company does not have any permanent employees. The personnel working for the company are from holding
company on secondment basis. The employee c(xt (including retirement benefits such as Gratuity, leave encashment, post-

retAement benefits etc.) in respect oI perconnel working for the company are paid by holding corrpany. Since there are no
employees in the company, the obligation as per Ind-AS 19 does not aiise. Accoidingly, no provision is considered
necessary for any letirement benefit like gratuity, leave salary, pension etc., in the books of the company.

Note 50 a) Figures have been rounded off to nearcst rupees in Crores up to two decimals.
b) Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever coisidercd necessary
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